Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 1

WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP LAND USE BOARD
PUBLIC MEETING MINUTES
December 10, 2008, 7:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER and PUBLIC NOTICE

Chairperson Kerry Pflugh called the meeting to order at @:86 Ms. Pflugh said this is
a regular meeting of the Land Use Board of the Townshipadhivigton. Adequate
notice of this meeting has been given in accordanttethe Open Public Meetings Act
in that a Notice was publishedTine Star Gazette andExpress Times. Notice was posted
on the municipal bulletin board in the Township Admirabn Building in Washington
Township, New Jersey, and notice was filed with the fsivp Clerk.

FLAG SALUTE

Ms. Pflugh led the Board and members of the public inldgedalute.

ROLL CALL

Present: Dave Dempski, Jim Vergos, Kerry Pflugh,KMRossi, Erich Sodtalbers,
Leonard Artigliere, Robert Klingel, R. J. Strunk

Absent: Evan Howell, Efrem Zaret, Jon Grdovic

Professionals: Steven Gruenberg, Esq.; Willlam GIeta,, Scarlett Doyle, P.P.
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Motion to go into Executive Session was made and seconitledlivmembers in favor.
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

Mr. Gruenberg provided legal analysis as to scarce resmastaint. Board will
continue to act and conditions of approval will apply ppravals:

(1) Approval will be conditioned upon property being exemptethfscarce resource
restraint or waiver or exemption from Highlands restins;

(2) Approval does not vest until scarce resource reswadlar is satisfied.
Notice of conditions will be announced at every meetiAgorney Gruenberg will

prepare a notice to applicants advising of the Board’s pohtinputes of the Executive
Session will be made available.



Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 2

Motion to approve was made by James Vergos and secondedkyRb&si.

Mr. Artigliere indicated he believed the ruling should bellehged although this is
currently the prudent method of processing applications.

Members in favor: Dave Dempski, Jim Vergos, Kerrydti, Mark Rossi, Erich
Sodtalbers, Leonard Artigliere, Robert Klingel

MINUTES

Motion to approve the minutes of the meeting of NovembeRQ@3, was made by
James Vergos and seconded by Erich Sodtalbers.

Members in favor:  Jim Vergos, Kerry Pflugh, Erfébddtalbers, Robert Klingel
Members abstaining: Mark Rossi, Leonard Artigliere, D®aanpski, R. J. Strunk

RESOLUTIONS

Hackett — #2004-26
Use Variance

Members eligible to vote: Robert Klingel, Jim Vergosytg Pflugh, Leonard
Artigliere and Jon Grdovic

Mr. Benbrook has requested that the resolution be considetkd next meeting to allow
time for his review

REQUEST FOR EXTENSION

Richard Keiling, Esq., introduced himself on behalf of tbeliaant, Bruce Apgar.
He noted that escrow has been posted. Request is aragagonable extension of the
time for professionals to review the deeds.

Bill Gleba indicated that Finelli Consulting had notewed revised plans. These must
be submitted prior to reviewing deeds.

Scarlett Doyle said extension should be conditionedpphicant complying with current
COAH regulations.

Concern was expressed that the escrow be replenistaatitioAal $1300 should be paid
for escrow.

Motion was made by Mark Rossi and seconded by Leonard iarégb extend to
February 28, 2009, conditioned on escrow replenishment of $1,800 additional
escrow as required.



Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 3

Members in favor: Dave Dempski, Jim Vergos, Kerdydti, Mark Rossi, Leonard
Artigliere, Robert Klingel, Erich Sodtalbers.

Opposed: RJ Strunk

Hodges Melrose LLC, #2008-17
Block 23, Lot 12

Preliminary Site Plan with variance relief for a Walgn's Pharmacy.
Mayor Dempski and Committeeman Strunk recused themselves.

Members eligible to vote: Robert Klingel, Jim Vergosrrigdflugh, Efrem Zaret,
Leonard Artigliere, Jon Grdovic, Erich Sodtalbers

This hearing is continued from November 12, 2008.

Josh Mann, Esq., attorney for applicant, announced tloeviog would be called as
witnesses:

John Harter, Traffic Engineer
Larry Keller, Whitestone Associates
Michael Tobia, Planner

Josh Mann, Esq., requested vote on appeal.

Members in attendance who are eligible to vote: Esiotitalbers, James Vergos, Mark
Rossi, Kerry Pflugh, Leonard Artigliere.

Mr. Mann asked about Mr. Gibbons’ experts.
Mr. Gibbons said he had not produced witnesses to deaintatipretation issues.

Mr. Gibbons raised an issue of conflict of interestwitr. Lowcher being the chair of
Economic Development Committee for Washington Township. NMMnn indicated he
did not believe this is a conflict. This is a sepanatiependent board.

Board and Mann requested that a letter be submitted by Fagltoythe contention that a
conflict of interest exists.

Larry Keller, P.E., geotechnical expert, was called avats. His credentials were
accepted by the Board.

Mr. Keller described the soils and subsurface investigatite noted carbonate rock was
found, and this is typical of the area. Mr. Kellenfioned that he designed the septic
system and storm water management system. Heddstiat applicant had designed the
septic to go above and beyond what would be usual for ¢ae drhe capacity is more



Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 4

than adequate. Mr. Keller observed he is in consultatitnthe Township geotechnical
expert. He testified additional netting is added as &lyevarning system” should there
be any failure.

Mr. Keller was asked whether he would respond to the &da@ounty Health
Department review. Bill Gleba indicated he had reckoadls from the Health Dept.
with their concerns. Thirteen items were identifi€¢dttach Health Dept. review letter).
Mr. Keller noted applicant intends to comply with theiees comments. Mr. Keller
confirmed applicant had been in contact with Washington ®grpand there is no
capacity available.

Question was raised as to wastewater management wiaiok, will be adopted by the
Township in 2009. It was noted that inquiry must be made Washington Borough as
to availability of connection.

Mr. Gibbons asked for Keller's response to item #5 of thdaépt. letter. Mr. Keller
said the system meets code. Mr. Mann noted applicantamiply with County
requirements and Township ordinances.

Mr. Gibbons asked whether the septic would be adequatedtinea use. Mr. Mann
noted a change of use would require another site plarcamh.

Mr. Gibbons asked how applicant would address the wetlaeds#7. Larry Murphy,
P.E., Bohler Engineering testified application had mdmmitted to NJDEP, and NJDEP
noted there were no transition areas or wetlands isgmEable to the site.

Mr. Gibbons asked about #12, and Mr. Keller indicated apylisan discussion with the
Board of Health, and decision has not yet been made.

Mr. Gibbons inquired as to the alternative systems. Kdller indicated he believe the
applicant had proposed the best system.

Michael Tobia, PP, was introduced and sworn. Mr. Teliaedentials were accepted by
the Board.

Douglas Henshaw, Esq., of the Porzio firm introduced Hirasehe member of the firm
who would conduct the questioning of Mr. Tobia.

Mr. Henshaw raised the question of the drive throughndrether this is customary.
Mr. Tobia referenced Exhibit A-4. He discussed the driveugsh on the northeasterly
side of the building. There is a canopy over theedtihirough window. This is a single
lane. Dropping off and picking up prescriptions are the usdss type of use came to
favor approximately 10 years ago for the convenienceeo¢oimsumer. This is a very
low volume use. Question is whether this is an accgsse. Mr. Tobia said it is now
customary and incidental for a pharmacy use. Zoningamdes are comprised of
permitted and accessory uses. Accessory uses are eeguifferently than principal



Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 5

permitted uses. Mr. Tobia contended many accessory sastadentified in the
ordinance. He referenced that the accessory use shoftdddbemarily associated,
subordinate and incidental’. Mr. Tobia testified thas ise meets the necessary criteria.

Mr. Tobia indicated there are a number of accessory as¢he site plan, which are not
specifically enumerated in the zoning ordinance.

Mr. Tobia indicated in his experience this is commoegland customary to pharmacies.

Asked about drive through uses typically in fast food amkb, Mr. Tobia testified fast
food restaurants take 40-50% of their traffic throughditnee through. Banks generate
50% of their business through drive through windows. Thsss tend to require greater
scrutiny. Pharmacies have limited scope. Prescriptiolysmay be dispensed at the
drive through. Drive through window is a medical convecge

No ATM will be associated with the drive through window.

Mr. Gibbons asked what Mr. Tobia had reviewed. Mr. ToléIsa had reviewed the
zoning ordinance, site plan, site visit, and Ms. Doylefsort. Mr. Gibbons asked about
reviewing Section 123.4 saying “any use not expressed is prohibik&d Tobia
indicated it is intended to apply to principal uses. Heaa follow up in another section
of the ordinance.

Asked whether the ordinance permits drive through windMrusTobia indicated that
banks and fast food restaurants are referenced. Mbo@s asked why it did not apply.
The important distinction is that banks and fast foeplire more significant planning.
Mr. Tobia contended many ordinances are similarly stradtur

Mr. Henshaw requested that the Board deliberate on titwgoretation of whether the
drive through requires a use variance. Applicant contdrglssta usual and customary
accessory use.

Members eligible to vote: Erich Sodtalbers, James &griglark Rossi, Kerry Pflugh,
Leonard Artigliere

Mr. Sodtalbers noted there is precedent for the dhkaugh pharmacy use. Mr.

Artigliere referenced the objector's memo. Mr. Aiiegé asked about reference to 123.4.
He asked for clarification as to the reference to palas opposed to accessory uses.
Mr. Gruenberg said there is a different portion of that deals with accessory uses.
Incidental or subsidiary uses are considered to be arge#isthe use is defined as
accessory, it need not be referenced in the ordinahteere is case law on the issue.

Mr. Gibbons contended the Washington Township ordinance viawe referenced
pharmacy drive through windows if, in fact, that wasittiention.

Motion to deem drive through use as permitted accessory useneugy incidental to



Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 6

the pharmacy use was made by Erich Sodtalbers anddsstbg James Vergos.

Mr. Sodtalbers noted there is precedent. Mark Rdxssroed it is incidental since it is
only to dispense meds. Leonard Artigliere reference®tbiechel case, which found the
drive through to be an accessory use handled outside of 123.4.

Members in favor: Erich Sodtalbers, James Vergosk Raissi, Kerry Pflugh, Leonard
Artigliere.

Mr. Henshaw indicated that applicant would seek testimoyy Mr. Tobia on the
signage on the site. Ms. Pflugh indicated the Board peefgrofessionals to receive the
plans prior to next week’s hearing.

Poll was taken as to which Board members were availabtee meeting scheduled for
December 17.

Unable to attend: Erich Sodtalbers, Kerry Pflugh, Ef#taret
Available: James Vergos, Robert Klingel
Uncertain: Mark Rossi, Leonard Artigliere, Jon Grdovic

Motion to carry the hearing to the meeting on Weds., B&dnwas made by Erich
Sodtalbers and seconded by Robert Klingel. All memhmswred on voice vote.

Request was made to identify objector’s withesses.Qilibons said he had not yet
made a decision.

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

I. Email has been received from Fairway Mews prospedeveloper. Mr. DempskKi
encouraged the Board to pursue this as helping the Townsglpits affordable housing
obligations. The developer will post an escrow and mve¢btBoard professionals on
Monday.

Ms. Doyle referenced the Fair Housing Act andcaigbd the governing body can
extend for 30 years. Ms. Doyle recommended that thenaftde authorized to research
the possibilities.

II. Professionals were requested to provide their prdgpé=a2009.
[1l. 2009 Land Use Board Budget

There was discussion as to professional feasdster plan re-examination, COAH



Minutes December 10, 2008
Washington Township Land Use Board 7

and wastewater management plan.

Board secretary was instructed to use 2008 numlztditional $20,000 for
COAH. Money should be earmarked from the Affordable Hau$rust fund.

Ms. Pflugh expressed her gratitude to the Board for teewice to the community as
well as Board secretary.

MERRY CHRISTMAS

PUBLIC COMMENT

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 10:45 P.M.

These minutes were approved 1/7/09.

Alice Oldford, Secretary to the Board



